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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation. 
 

Minutes:                                                 14 

 
 
Chairman Weisz:  Opened the hearing on HB 1441. 
 
Representative Mary Johnson, District 45, Introduced bill, See attachment 1. 
(Time stamp 0:09:18) 
 
Representative Todd Porter: ND is a right to work state, how would this bill play out if it 
were to pass? 
 
Rep. Johnson:  Adding sexual orientation would work well. 
 
Representative Mary Schneider: One of the big issues recently, religious discrimination.  
How does this bill address those that say they can discriminate based on religion? 
 
Rep. Johnson:    My religion demands this be passed.  My religion supports this because 
we should be supportive.  Rise above identity politics, look to the constitution.  Who is being 
equally protected and who is not. 
 
Chairman Weisz:    Further support testimony? 
 
Jody Uecker, Governor operating officer:   In support, See attachment 2.  This bill will 
promote sound workforce policies. 
 
Carol Two Eagles, citizen:    In support, See attachment 3. Sexual orientation is a matter 
of the soul. A matter of spirituality, not physicality. 
(Time stamp 0:18:48) 
 
Opposition 
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Mark Jorritsma, Executive director Family Policy Alliance of ND:    Opposed, see 
attachment 4.  This bill would not allow North Dakotans to live and work according to their 
beliefs. 
(Time stamp 0:28:44) 
 
Rep. Anderson:    Rep. Johnson stated she had versus in the bible 
 
Mark Jorritsma:    I am Christian and rep. Johnson gave a different perspective.  I believe 
the passages state that homosexuality is not permitted.  Religious freedom is protected and 
this bill would not allow people to practice their religious freedom. 
 
Karen Anderson, Member of Concerned Women for America of ND, State Steering 
Committee member:  In opposition; See attachment 5. Raises sexual orientation to a 
protected law.  
(Time stamp 0:34:32) 
 
Representative Mary Schneider: How many due payers do you have in ND 
 
Karen Anderson: We have over 800 members 
 
Christopher T. Dodson, Executive Director ND Catholic Conference; Opposed, see 
attachment 6.  
(Time stamp 0:40:20) 
 
Chairman Weisz:  Questions?  Seeing none, further opposition. 
 
Elizabeth Loos, Legislative Coordinator ND Human Rights Coalition: Opposition, See 
attachment 6. Opposed because it excludes gender identity as a protected class, and thus 
codifies into law that it is acceptable to discriminate against transgender people. (Time stamp 
0:48:41) 
 
Representative Dick Anderson: What if I hired a transgender person and my business 
suffers because of this and I have to let them go. 
 
Elizabeth Loos:  I wouldn’t suspect if they were doing wonderful work you wouldn’t be faced 
with the problem. 
 
Christy Wolffe, Women’s Network: Not present for testimony, written testimony provided, 
See attachment 7 
 
Representative Chuck Damschen:  Putting this aside and saying I was in rep. Anderson’s 
statement but instead he has an abrasive personality.  Would I have a right to fire him? 
 
Elizabeth Loos: Yes 
 
Rep. Damschen: Would I be discriminating against his sexuality? 
 
Elizabeth Loos: Your grounds for firing would be his attitude, not his sexual identity. 
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Chairman Weisz:  Opposition 
 
Cody Severson, Activist, Citizen Fargo: Opposition.  Not supporting due to transgender 
identity not being included. See attachment 8 
(Time stamp 56:24) 
 
 Representative Matthew Ruby: Is there a lower rate of suicide in states that have passed 
similar bills? 
 
Cody Severson: I do not have supporting statistics, however it would make sense that this 
would be the case considering people could live their sexual preference. 
 
Clint Fleckenstein, Citizen: Opposition, See attachment 9.  This bill contains no protections 
for the constitutional rights of North Dakotans, and will be used to attack.  Words used like 
Love, equality and fairness.  The truth is it’s legalized bullying as it’s a way for Sexuality 
Activists to punish another through law for exercising their biblical views and constitutional 
rights.   
(Time stamp 1:07:10) 
 
William Schuh, Citizen:  Opposed, See attachment 10.  
(Time stamp 1:19:40) 
 
Chairman Weisz:  Questions? 
 
Kevin Tangenstal,  citizen: In opposition, written testimony not provided.  Opposed as this 
bill excludes gender identity.  
(Time stamp 1:24:30) 
 
Jay Scott, Citizen and student, member of LGBTQA: Opposition see attachment 11.  I don’t 
normally go out in public dressed this way because I live in fear in ND.  This bill trades away 
the rights to some for rights for others by not including transgender. 
 
Hannah Hunter, Fargo resident:      Opposition. See attachment 12. Not inclusive of the 
entire group, LGBTQA Plus.  Human rights should not be up for debate.  This bill will make 
it harder for transgender people to find work. 
 
Miranda (last name Unknown):     Opposition, written testimony not provided. Many people 
claim religious reasons why they do not support.  Why do transgender people not included 
to be the same rights? 
 
Kim Reidlinger, citizen.  Opposed, written testimony not provided.  This would provide basic 
human rights for all of our citizens.  Concerned because younger generations, regardless of 
sexuality, feel ND supports discrimination on LGBTQ Plus community and because of this 
they have left and will not return. Per human rights campaign, violence has steadily risen 
against trans genders since 2014.  Due to lack of LGBTQ Plus protections. 
(Time stamp 1:42:48) 
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Ahma Schult, citizen: Opposed.  Written testimony not provided.  
(Time stamp 1:48:01) 
 
Chairman Weisz:  Neutral testimony 
 
Neutral 
 
Commissioner Michelle Kommer: Labor and Human Rights Commission, introduced 
Rheider McCormic 
 
Rheider McCormick, Law intern for Labor and Human Rights Commission, See attachment 
13 
 
Chairman Weisz:  Are there a lot of reports against LGBYQ community? 
 
Commissioner Kommer: Disability and retaliation claims are the highest. 
 
Chairman Weisz: closed 
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(04:50) 
Chairman Weisz: Opened the hearing on HB 1441. 
 
(05:00) 
Chairman Weisz: So these are your amendments, Representative Dobervich. I believe everyone 
has a copy of the amendments, 01002. 
 
(05:20) 
Rep. Dobervich: Basically the amendment on page 3, line 22, inserts gender identity. 
 
(05:38) 
Chairman Weisz: So that's basically you're defining gender identity in that section. 
 
(05:43) 
Rep. Dobervich: And then on page 4, line 26, adds gender identity under sexual orientation as well. 
And then the renumbering. 
 
(05:59) 
Chairman Weisz: So everybody understands the amendment. So it’s the same bill, just broadening 
which was, of course, a lot of the testimony yesterday. 
 
(06:21) 
Rep. Anderson: I just have a question for Representative Dobervich, did you visit with Mary on this? 
I know why she did what she did, and she was afraid that if she added any of this, she wouldn't have 
a chance of getting her bill passed, but I don't now if you did or not. 
 
(06:38) 
Rep. Dobervich: I did let her know, and she was not excited about the amendment, and I totally 
understand the reasoning behind this. I'm proposing the amendment based on (audio not clear). 
 
(07:10) 
Rep. Dobervich: Moved amendment .01002. 
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(07:21) 
Rep. Anderson: Seconded. 
 
(07:30) 
Rep. Ruby: I'm going to resist this amendment strictly, I know somebody who basically wakes up 
every morning and picks from a hat on what gender they're going to be today. And the actual 
perceived confused me. I think it's going to cause a lot of troubles, so I think that there's, that may be 
an anecdote, an outlier, but it's relevant. So I'm going to go against this. 
 
(08:02) 
Chairman Weisz: Any further discussion on the amendment? 
 
(08:10) 
A voice vote was taken. Motion failed. 
 
(08:22) 
Chairman Weisz: Is there any other amendments? 
 
(08:27) 
Rep. Porter: Mr. Chairman, there is. Representative Johnson did have one out, 01001. 
 
(08:39) 
Chairman Weisz: Well, let's discuss it. I'd entertain a motion to get it on the table at least. 
 
(08:54) 
Vice Chairman Rohr made the motion. 
 
(09:02) 
Rep. Dobervich: Seconded. 
 
(09:06) 
Chairman Weisz: And if I recall, the argument for removing the actual or perceived, correct? 
 
(09:17) 
Rep. Porter: Page 6, line 6. 
 
(09:20) 
Chairman Weisz: And I'm trying to remember the, page 4, line 25. I'm trying to remember the 
argument. I think, if I remember, testimony was that perceived wasn't necessary anyway because in 
a sense it's already implied that sexual orientation means homosexuality, bisexuality, or 
heterosexuality by itself. I don't know, that was her argument that you don't need to. But you could 
argue, maybe I shouldn't even say this, but, if you take out perceived, what defines or what qualifies 
homosexuality? Maybe I'm not making myself clear, or bisexuality or heterosexuality for that matter. 
What's the criteria then? Because, legally, it is because you say you are. You say you're a 
heterosexual or you say you're bisexual. So does the language need to be in there? I don't know. 
 
(11:22) 
Rep. Dobervich: I'm wondering if it isn't the perceived is in there based on the person perceiving as 
much as society perceiving. Because right now if I think an employee is gay, I can fire them, whether 
they have come out as gay and whether they are or not. So I'm wondering if the perception is more 
there not for the person but for society as a whole. 
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Chairman Weisz: And I think that's kind of my point is that there's, the only definition is that that 
person says so if society or the employer, whoever you want to say, if they perceive someone and 
discriminate against them regardless of even whether they are or not. So it seems like you'd almost 
want to keep that language in. But that is the bill sponsor did want to remove it. So whatever the 
committees wants to do with it. We do have a motion, I guess there's no further discussion. Let's see 
where it goes. 
 
(12:47) 
A voice vote was taken. Motion failed. 
 
(12:57) 
Chairman Weisz: Are there any other amendments? Okay, if there aren't, then let's talk about the 
bill. 
 
(13:04) 
Rep. Ruby: Do you want to correct the spelling mistake? 
 
(13:06) 
Chairman Weisz: Oh. Where's there a spelling mistake? 
 
(13:08) 
Rep. Ruby: The "for" to "from". 
 
(13:10) 
Chairman Weisz: Oh, on page 6, line 6. Okay, committee, take a look there. Yeah, there might need 
to be. Well, but I mean there's no, okay, page 6, line 6 does not prohibit. Oh yeah "for" with "from". 
We should then have a motion to correct that on page 6, line 6, the "for" to "from". 
 
(13:39) 
Rep. Rohr: It says it right here. 
 
(13:41) 
Chairman Weisz: I know, but we killed that. 
 
(13:42) 
Rep. Rohr: Oh, so I see, you have to go add it again. I didn't know that. 
 
(13:45) 
Chairman Weisz: Yeah, we killed that amendment. 
 
(13:47) 
Rep. Tveit made a motion to correct the language on page 6, line 6. 
 
(13:56) 
Rep. Dobervich: Seconded. 
 
(13:58) 
Chairman Weisz: Any discussion on that. That's just cleaning up the bill here. 
 
(14:03) 
A voice vote was taken. Motion carried. 
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(14:21) 
Chairman Weisz: This is always a fun subject that some of us have dealt with since 2009. Discussion 
on the bill? Motion? I realize we're probably not changing minds to any degree. 
 
(14:49) 
Rep. Anderson: My feelings are, even though that discrimination of any kind is horrible, I just think 
this puts a lot of burden on an employer who he hires. And I actually think it would be more 
discrimination, just visiting with my brother who lives out in California and has his own business, he 
gets to the point that he's very picky on who he hires because just of the lawsuits that are thrown up 
all the time. I just don't think it's going to help anything. It's my opinion. 
 
(15:28) 
Chairman Weisz: Further discussion? 
 
(15:34) 
Rep. Damschen: The same one we talked about, the point that we talked about every time is that 
we run into trouble if we start making special, giving special rights. I wouldn't think anyone in this 
committee would discriminate against the LGBT people. But I would certainly would be against giving 
them special rights, or any other group, actually, for that matter, giving them special rights. I think the 
constitution, both North Dakota and the U.S. Constitution don't leave anybody out when they 
guarantee rights. So I'm going to oppose this one again. 
 
(16:22) 
Chairman Weisz: Yeah, we'll fail it, and it's not directly related to this bill in a way. I thought it was 
interesting the number one thing that is being discriminated against is the disabled. I thought that 
was, it wasn't was I expected, I guess, to be honest with you, what the answer was. And it sounds 
like it was overwhelmingly, compared to the other complaints of discrimination, which may be telling 
us we have a ways to go too on how we treat our, those with disabilities. Further discussion? 
 
(17:16) 
Rep. Porter: I move a do not pass on House Bill 1441. 
 
(17:22) 
Vice Chairman Rohr: Seconded. 
 
(17:25) 
Chairman Weisz: Further discussion? If anybody else had amendments, I surely would have like to 
have looked at them. And, frankly, I wish there was a way we could resolve some of the issues. I'm 
tired of this too. I'm not always thrilled being the bad guy here. It just seems like were sort of at an 
impasse at this point, where we can't come up with a way that melds where I think most, I would hope 
all of us should, but at least I hope the vast majority agree we shouldn't be discriminating, and how 
you make that fit with some of the other issues that come up. 
 
(18:16) 
A roll call vote was taken:  Yes 11,  No 2,  Absent 1. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Chairman Weisz will carry the bill. 
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19.0991.01002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Dobervich 

 February 8, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1441 

Page 3, line 22, after "10." insert ""Gender identity" means actual or perceived gender-related 
identity, appearance, or mannerisms, or other gender-related 
characteristics of an individual, regardless of the individuals' designated 
gender at birth. 

 11." 

Page 3, line 26, overstrike "11." and insert immediately thereafter "12." 

Page 3, line 28, overstrike "12." and insert immediately thereafter "13." 

Page 3, line 30, overstrike "13." and insert immediately thereafter "14." 

Page 4, line 4, overstrike "14." and insert immediately thereafter "15." 

Page 4, line 11, overstrike "15." and insert immediately thereafter "16." 

Page 4, line 14, overstrike "16." and insert immediately thereafter "17." 

Page 4, line 17, overstrike "17." and insert immediately thereafter "18." 

Page 4, line 24, overstrike "18." and insert immediately thereafter "19." 

Page 4, line 25, overstrike "19." and insert immediately thereafter "20." 

Page 4, line 26, after "homosexuality" insert ", or gender identity" 

Page 4, line 27, replace "20." with "21." 

Page 6, line 6, replace "for" with "from" 

Renumber accordingly 
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19.0991.01001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative M. Johnson 

 February 8, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1441 

Page 4, line 25, remove "actual or perceived" 

Page 6, line 6, replace "for" with "from" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 13, 2019 10:08AM 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_28_011 
Carrier: Weisz 

Insert LC: 19.0991.01003 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1441: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO NOT 
PASS (11 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HS 1441 was placed on 
the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 6, line 6, replace "for" with "from" 

Renumber accordingly 
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HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 

FEBRUARY 11, 2019 

SUPPORT OF HB 1441 

REP. MARY C. JOHNSON 

I am Mary Johnson, Representative from District 45. I am the prime sponsor of HB 1441 which seeks to 

ban discrimination based on sexual orientation in employment, housing, state and local government 

services and credit transactions. 

With the amendment I just passed out, "Sexual Orientation" means heterosexuality, bisexuality or 

homosexuality." As was pointed out to me, "actual or perceived" has no bearing on the underlying 

discrimination based on sexual orientation. 

pd I 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative M. Johnson 

February 8, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1441 

Page 4, line 25, remove "actual or perceived" 

Page 6, line 6, replace "for" with "from" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Testimony on HB 1441 

Prepared for the House Human Services Committee 

February 11, 2019 

Good morning Chairman Weisz and members of the Human Services Committee, 

My name is Jodi Uecker and I serve as the Chief Operating Officer for the 

Governor's Office, and on behalf of the Governor's Office, I stand in support of 

HB1441. 

The passage of this bill is an important message to current and future North Dakota 

citizens. With over 30,000 job openings, every policy the legislature is considering 

should be viewed through a lens of supporting workforce development in our state. 

We need our young people to stay in North Dakota, and we need to recruit new 

North Dakotans in order to fill the abundance of open jobs across our state. We 

are competing both nationally and globally for talent, and laws that exclude or limit 

the rights of our citizens, or the omission of laws that protect those rights, create a 

barrier for recruiting and retaining talent. You have the opportunity before you to 

promote sound workforce policy for the great state of North Dakota. 
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TESTIMONY ON HB1441 CAREL TWO-EAGLE, PK 
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FEBRUARY 11, 2cfil / 

Hanh Chairman and members of the Committee. For the record, my name is Carel Two­

Eagle. I am here in support of HB 1441. 

In the Indian Way of every Native Nation on this Turtle Island, one's sexual orientation is a 
matter of the kind of soul that inhabits a body, not whether the body has male or female 

genitalia. It is a matter of spirituality, not physicality. 

Among us Lakota, a person is one of the following: 

a male spirit in a male body (Straight male); 

a female spirit in a female body (Straight female); 

a male spirit in a female body (winkte); or 

a female spirit in male body (sometimes winkte, sometimes "manly-hearted woman". 

We are the original "one person, one vote people". If someone tries to talk to you about "two 

spirit" people, ignore them. Such things are anathema to us Lakota. Before missionaries and 

reservations, bisexual people would be killed in a special ceremony so their two spirits could 

go back to the Spirit World and get one body each. Our cultural thinking is, if there are 2 

spirits in one body, you are dis-eased and not in balance, and it is unkind to leave a person in 

such a condition. 

Given that I Walk with a Pipe and such a Pipe is holy, I am the authority on such things, not 

them. In Lakota, I would say, "Channunpa yuha wamani ye." - I Walk With a Pipe. And, 

"Channunpa wakan ye" - The Pipe is Holy. We who Keep Pipes (Channunpa) are the 

authorities on things spiritual. 

In Traditional Lakota society, the winkte are not discriminated against but rather are valued 

as spiritual bridges between the two Straight worlds. They are considered to have special 

spiritual and other talents that fulfill some cultural and/or ceremonial needs of the 

community that ordinary people can not fill. 

Thus, this being a spiritual matter, it is as incorrect to discriminate against someone on the 

basis of their sex or sexual preference as it is to discriminate on the basis of eye or hair color. 

Please give this bill a unanimous DO PASS recommendation. I am always available to answer 

your questions. Thank you for hearing me in a good way now . 
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Fact Sheet on Recent EEOC Litigation-Related Developments Regarding Coverage of LG . . .  

20 1 5 , Defendant agreed to sett le the case by entering into a two year consent decree which includes 
injunctive rel ief and $ 1 50,000 in monetary damages. 

Appellate Cases 
• EEOC v. Boh Bros. Constr. Co. LLC (5th Cir .  1 1 -30770) . The Commission won a j ury verdict in the amount 

of $45 1 ,000 in this Title VI I  enforcement action with evidence showing that Chuck Wolfe , the supervisor of an 
al l-male construction crew, harassed Kerry Woods, one of his subord inates , and created a hosti le work 
environment. The d istrict court subsequently reduced the verdict to $30 1 ,000 because of statutory l imits and 
a lso  provided injunctive rel ief to  prevent future discrimination . A panel of  the  F ifth  C i rcuit reversed the  jury 
verdict ,  and the EEOC sought rehearing en bane .  I n  September 201 3 ,  a 1 0-6 m ajority of the Court of Appeals 
uphe ld the jury verd ict except for the pun itive damages award . 
The Appel late Court held that a pla intiff al leging same-sex harassment can show that the harassment 
occurred because of sex by showing that i t  was motivated by the harasser's  subjective perception that the 
vict im fai led to conform to gender stereotypes. The Court agreed with the Commission that th is ru le fol lows 
from Price Waterhouse v. Hopkins, 490 U .S .  228 (1 989) , and Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Services, Inc. , 
523 U .S .  75 (1 998) . The Court ruled that the focus is on the "harasser's subjective perception of the victim" 
and even an employer's "wrong or i l l - informed assumptions about its employee may form the bas is  of a 
d iscrimination claim" since " [w]e do not require a plaintiff to prop up his employer's subjective d iscriminatory 
animus by proving that it was rooted in  some objective truth ." The Court then ruled that the Commission had 
offered sufficient evidence to sustain the jury's verdict that Wolfe harassed Woods because of sex (here , 
because Wolfe viewed Woods as "not manly enough") ,  and that Wolfe's harassment of Woods was 
sufficiently severe or  pervasive to create a hosti le environment. See 732 F .3d 444 (5th Cir. 201 3) (en bane) .  

Amicus Briefs 

Transgender Status & Gender-Identity 
• Dawson v. H & H Electric, Inc. (E .D . Ark. No .  4 : 1 4cv00583 SWN) (amicus br ief filed June 26,  201 5) . 

Pla intiff fi led this Title V I I  su it against her employer, a l leging d iscrim ination on the bas is of her transgender 
status.  At the t ime she was h i red,  p la intiff used her b irth name and presented as a male .  After a gender 
dysphoria diagnosis ,  plaintiff began transitioning from male to female and lega l ly changed her  name. P la intiff 
repeatedly asked to use her legal name at work and was denied . Following a series of d iscriminatory 
behavior from H & H's vice president ,  he ultimately fired plaintiff stating ,  "you do g reat work, but you are too 
much of a d istraction ."  H & H moved for summary judgment, argu ing that transgender status is not a 
cogn izable claim under Title VI I .  
I n  an amicus  curiae brief, the EEOC a rgued Price Waterhouse makes clear that transgender d iscrim ination i s  
cogn izable as d iscrimination because o f  sex under Title VI I .  The Commission noted that numerous federal 
d istrict courts have concluded that transgender d iscrimination is cognizable under Tit le VI I .  Add itional ly . the 
Commission argued that the defendant's re l iance on the rationale in  Sommers and Ulane i s  m isp laced 
because the Supreme Court rejected the rationale in  those cases. The Commission further argued that the 
Supreme Court i n  Oncale expl icitly rejected the idea that Title VI I on ly proscribes types of d iscrimination 
specifically contemplated by Congress .  Furthermore ,  Congressional inaction  does not exclude the pla intiffs 
claim under Title VI I .  Accordingly, the plain language of nt1e VI I prohibits d iscrim ination based on 
transgender status,  and the cou rt shou ld hold that transgender d iscrimination is  cogn izable as  sex 
d iscrimination under Title VI I .  

On September 1 5 , 20 1 5 , the D istrict Court denied H & H's motion for summary judgment. The court found 
that pla intiff p ied facts sufficient to state a sufficient c la im that H & H discriminated aga inst her because of her 
sex in violation of Title VI I .  Notably .  the court d id not specifical ly address the Commiss ion's a rgument. 
I nstead , it based the analysis on gender non-conforming behavior, rather than status as a transgender 
i ndividual .  The court concluded that plaintiff provided ample evidence from which a reasonable juror could 
find that she was terminated because of her sex. The pla intiff carried her bu rden to show that H & H's 
proffered reason was pretext for sex d iscrimination . 

• Eure v. Sage Corp., (5th Cir. No .  1 4-51 3 1 1 )  (amicus brief filed April 22 , 201 5) . P la intiff, a transgender 
individua l ,  a l leged that defendant violated Tit le VI I  by d iscrim inating aga inst h im because of h is  sex/gender .  
P la intiff stated that the defendant reduced h is  work hours because he is transgender. Further ,  p la int iff a l leged 
that defendant cut his supervisor's pay as reta l iation for hi r ing him. P la intiff and his supervisor resigned as a 
result of defendant's conduct . P la intiff appealed the district court's grant of summary judgment in favor of 
defendant. In g rant ing summary judgment ,  the district court asserted that pla i n tiff  presented evidence 
specifically on status as a transgender person ,  and not in terms related to conformance with gender 
stereotypes . The d istrict court held that fa i l u re to present evidence showing that the d iscrim inat ion was 
mot ivated by p la int iffs fa i lure to act as  a stereotypica l  woman fa i ls to establ i sh a cognizable gender 
stereotyping cla im and cannot succeed in  showing that the discriminat ion was "beca use of sex" under Tit le 
VI I .  

• 

• 

https : //www l . eeoc .gov / /eeoc/l itigation/selected/lgbt_ facts. cfm ?renderforpri nt= 1 1 /3 1 /20 1 7 
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I n  a n  amicus brief, the EEOC argued that the 5 th Circuit should reverse the grant of summary judgment 
because the d istrict court incorrectly interpreted the scope of Title Vl l 's protections against discrimination 
"because of . . .  sex." The Commission explained that a transgender plaintiff may state a cla im for 
d iscrimination because of sex, if the defendant's action was motivated by the p la intiffs nonconformance with 
a sex stereotype or norm .  The Commission further argued that a pla intiff assert ing transgender discrimination 
need not provide specific evidence of gender stereotyping because "consideration of gender stereotypes wi l l  
inherently be part of what  d rives d iscrimination against a transgendered ind ividual ." Add itiona l ly ,  t he  EEOC 
argued that the evidence presents a genuine d ispute of fact, from which a reasonable jury could infer that 
defendant discriminated against the plaintiff because of his sex. 

On August 26, 201 5 ,  the EEOC requested the ci rcuit court to a l low it to participate in oral arguments on 
behalf of the plaintiff. On September 1 7 , 201 5,  the p la intiff withdrew his appeal . 

• Jamal v. Saks & Co. (S .D .  Tex. No. 4 : 1 4-cv-02782) (amicus brief submitted with motion for leave to file Jan. 
22, 20 1 5). Plaintiff, a transgender individual , a l leged that defendant violated Title VI I  by harassing and 
discharging her because of her sex/gender. P la intiff a lleged that managers and co-workers referred to her 
using male pronouns ,  despite her requests to use female pronouns .  Further, p la intiff a l leged that 
management to ld  her to change her appearance to a more mascul ine one,  not to wear makeup or femin ine 
cloth ing ,  and to separate her home life from her work life .  She fi led an EEOC charge and was fi red ten days 
l ater. Defendant fi led a motion to dismiss arguing that Title VII does not protect "transsexua ls . "  Defendant 
further argued that p la intiff fai led to comply with the administrative prerequisites to suit because her EEOC 
charge described her as a male yet her complaint used the pronoun "her." F ina lly, defendant argued that 
p la intiff could not state a claim for retal iation because she had no reasonable bel ief that the conduct she 
compla ined of violated Tit le V I I .  

I n  its proposed amicus brief, the EEOC argued that t he  district court should deny defendant's motion to 
d ismiss and hold that d iscrimination against an  individual because she is transgender violates Title VI I .  As it 
d id in in its amicus brief in Lewis (above) , the EEOC explained that courts recognize that ntle Vl l 's prohibition 
on sex discrimination encompasses discrimination based on the fai lure to conform to gender expectations .  
Thus , d iscrimination against a transgender ind iv idual for non-conformance with gender norms is  sex 
d iscrim ination . Fu rther, the EEOC contended , specific evidence of gender stereotyping is not necessary 
because consideration of gender stereotypes is inherently part of what drives transgender d iscrim ination .  
Additional ly , the EEOC argued,  the d istrict court shou ld  ho ld  that  p laint iffs EEOC charge satisfied the 
admin istrative p rerequ isite to a suit a l leging transgender d iscrimination ,  as  the d iscrimination a l leged in the 
charge  i s  the same d iscrimination as that a l leged in the complaint. F ina l ly ,  the EEOC u rged the d istrict court 
to ho ld that p la intiffs act of fi l ing a charge with the EEOC and opposing conduct that a reasonable person 
would believe is  un lawfu l is protected activity for purposes of a retal iation cla im .  The E EOC explained that 
Title V l l 's "participation clause" protects an individual  from retal iation for fi l ing a charge ,  without l im itation 
(e.g . ,  a showing that p laintiffs charge was filed " in good faith") . Pla intiffs "opposit ion clause" claim also 
shou ld proceed beca use she could have a good faith , reasonable bel ief that transgender-based 
discrim ination violates Tit le VI I .  

On  January 26, 201 5 , Saks withdrew its motion t o  dismiss plaint iffs cla im.  On March 4 ,  201 5,  t h e  parties fi led 
a stipu lation agreeing to dismiss the action with p rejud ice .  

• Lewis v. High Point Reg'/ Health Sys. (E.D .N .C .  No .  5: 1 3-cv-838-8O) (amicus brief fi led Oct. 30, 201 4) .  
Plaintiff, a transgender female, al leges that defendant violated Title VI I by  fai l ing t o  h i re he r  i n  201 3 because 
of her sex/gender.  Pla intiff a lleges that during the in terview process, she was interviewed by a g roup of peer 
nurses who ridiculed her regarding her sex. Defendant informed plaintiff that it was looking for someone with 
more experience . Although plaintiff had the qual ifications for the position ,  she was not h i red;  rather ,  she 
a l leges that an individual with less experience was hired for the position .  Defendant filed a motion to dismiss 
a rguing that Tit le VI I does not prohibit "sexua l  orientation" d iscrim ination .  

I n  an  amicus brief, t h e  EEOC argued the d istrict court should deny defendant's motion  t o  d ismiss and hold 
that fa i l ing to h i re an individual because she is transgender violates Title VI I .  The EEOC explained that 
sexua l  orientation is a different concept altogether than transgender status or gender identity. The EEOC 
further exp la ined that courts have recognized that Tit le V l l 's prohibition on sex discrimination encompasses 
d iscrimination based on the fai lure to conform to gender expectations. Thus,  d iscrimination against a 
t ransgender i nd iv idua l  for non-conformance with gender norms is sex discrimination . Further, the EEOC 
argued , specific evidence of gender stereotyping is not necessary because consideration of gender 
stereotypes is i nherently part of what drives t ransgender d iscrimination . 

On  October 30, the d istrict court granted the EEOC's motion for leave to fi le  its am icus brief. The court noted 
that "[i]t Is clear that this Court's ru l ing wil l implicate the interpretation and effective enforcement of Title VI I ,  
a n d  therefore the EEOC has an interest in  this matter. Further, a s  p la intiff i s  p ro  se, and the EEOC i s  the 
expert agency on  the matter of Title V I I ,  the EEOC's amicus brief wi l l  be of a id to the Court i n  its decisional 
p rocess." 
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On January 1 5 , 20 1 5 , the d istrict court denied defendant's motion to d ism iss (as wel l  as plaintiffs motion for 
summary judgment) . The court noted that "[n]owhere in her complaint does plaintiff a l lege d iscrimination o n  
the basis o f  sexual orientation . "  Further ,  the court concluded , "neither the Supreme Court n o r  t h e  Fourth 
C ircuit's Tit le VI I  jurisprudence has addressed transgender0 status, which ,  as amicus  EEOC points out, is 
d ifferent than sexual orientat ion. " The Court decl ined to resolve whether "p la int iffs compla int fits within a 
gender-stereotyping framework" since "the issue was not raised in defendant's motion to d ism iss . . . .  " See , 
Lewis v. High Point Regional Health System, 79 F. Supp. 3d 588 (E.D .N .C .  Jan. 1 5 , 201 5) .  

• Chavez v. Credit Nation Auto Sales, LLC (N .D .  Ga .  No .  1 : 1 3-cv-031 2) (amicus brief fi led June 5 , 201 4) . 
Pla intiff worked as a mechanic for Credit Nation , a company that sel ls and repairs cars. I n  2009, she 
informed her employer that she intended to transition from male to female.  Some months l ater, she was 
terminated after a supervisor photographed her s leeping in a car during working hours .  She then fi led suit 
u nder Title VI I ,  a l leging that she was fired because of her gender. In moving for summary judgment, 
defendant a rgued that the plaintiff did not exhaust her administrative remedies because she fai led to file a 
t imely charge .  The Commission fi led an amicus curiae b rief in the d istrict cou rt , l im ited to this issue .  The 
Commission argued that the charge-fi l ing l im itations period should be to l led because before fina l ly accept ing 
the p laintiffs charge ,  EEOC had twice refused on the ground that "transgendered persons cannot fi le  cla ims 
for sex d iscrimination under Title VI I ." 
I n  ru l ing on the summary judgment motion , the district court rejected defendant's exhaustion arg ument. 
Without ment ioning EEOC's brief, the court noted that the " l imitations period under Title V I I  may be equ itably 
tol led if the EEOC misleads a complainant regarding the nature of his or her r ights." I n  the court's view that is 
what happened here .  The court stated that "Tit le VII proh ibits employers from d iscrim inating against 
employees for fai l ing to act and appear according to expectations defined by gender ." (citing  Price 
Waterhouse v. Hopkins, 490 U .S .  228 , 235 ( 1 989) ; Glenn v. Brumby, 683 F .3d 1 3 1 2 , 1 3 1 6  ( 1 1 th Cir .  201 1 ) ) .  
The court reasoned that  because the "'very acts that define transgender people as transgender are those that 
contradict stereotypes of gender-appropriate appearance and behavior, . . .  [d]iscrim ination against a 
transgender ind ividual  because of the gender nonconformity is sex discrimination ,  whether it's described as 
being on the basis of sex o r  gender."' (cit ing Brumby, 683 F .3d at 1 3 1 7) (adding that the "majority of federa l  
courts" agree). Accord ingly, the cou rt concluded , "the EEOC misled [p]la intiff when i t  to ld  [her] that  she cou ld 
not bring a claim for  gender d iscrimination under Title V I I ," and,  so ,  l imitations on the claim "is requ i red to be 
equ itably tol led ." The court went on to g rant defendant's motion , however ,  find ing no issue of fact as to 
whether the proffered reason for her termination - sleeping on the job - was pretextuat .  See 201 4  WL 
4585452 (N .D .  Ga .  Sept. 1 2 ,  20 1 4).  

On January 1 4th , 20 16 ,  the Eleventh Ci rcuit issued a decision affirming the d istrict court's ru l i ng  in fayor of 
summary judgment for defendant on the issue of pretext, but reversed on  the issues of ( 1 )  defendant's 
d iscriminatory i ntent, and (2) whether or not gender bias was a motivating factor in the term inat ion decision ,  
finding that plaintiff d i d  present triable issues of fact. See Chavez v .  Credit Nation Auto Sales, LLC, 20 1 6  WL 
1 58820 ( 1 1 th Cir. Jan .  1 4 ,  20 1 6) .  

The  1 1 th Circuit  held that p la intiff d i d  no t  create a jury issue as t o  pretext because (a) she  admitted to 
sleeping in her  car on the clock, and (b) the defendant had previously fired a d ifferent employee for this same 
conduct .  However, as to the term ination ,  the court ruled that plaintiff presented sufficient evidence to 
demonstrate that gender bias was a motivating factor ,  including the skeptical attitud e  of her supervisor 
regarding her transition ,  instructions about how she was to d ress at work and to and from work, her 
employer's concern about her gender expression as being disruptive, a bypassed d iscipl i nary process that 
was supposed to precede any termination action ,  etc. See Chavez, 20 1 6  WL 1 58820 at *6-9 .  The court 
stated that th i s  issue should have  survived summary judgment because it is enough tha t  the p la intiff shows 
that "discrim inatory animus existed and was at least 'a motivating factor ." '  See id. at *8 . 

Pacheco v. Freedom Buick GMC Truck, lnc.(W.D .  Tex. Civ . No .  7 : 1 0-cv-001 1 6) (amicus b rief submitted as 
attachment with motion for leave to file Oct. 1 7 , 20 1 1 ;  d istrict court denied motion for leave to fi le Nov. 1 ,  
201 1 ) .  Plaintiff Alex Pacheco filed suit al leging that defendant Freedom Buick GMC Truck, I nc. discharged 
her because she is transgender and fai led to conform to male gender stereotypes, and that this is 
d iscrimination because of sex i n  violat ion of Tit le VI I .  Freedom moved for summary judgment.  The 
Commission sought to file an amicus curiae br ief in which the Commission took the posit ion that, as a matter 
of law, disparate treatment of an employee because she is transgende r  is d iscriminat ion because of sex. The 
amicus brief argued that this is so for at least two reasons : ( 1 )  under the reasoning of the S upreme Court's 
decis ion in Price Waterhouse v. Hopkins, 490 U .S. 228 ( 1 989), d iscrim ination against a transgender 
individual because he or she does not conform to gender norms or stereotypes is d iscriminat ion "because of . 
. . sex" under Title V I I ;  and (2) fol lowing the reasoning in Schroer v. Billington, 577 F .  Supp .  2d 293 (D .D .C  . 
2008) , d iscrimination because an ind ividual intends to change , is changing ,  o r  has changed h is or her  sex, i s  
l i kewise prohib ited by  Title VI I .  The amicus brief also took the position that there were g enuine issues of 
materia l  fact that should preclude summary judgment on Pacheco's cla im .  

• 

• 
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The Commission filed a motion for leave to fi le this amicus brief in the d istrict court, and attached a copy of 
the brief to this motion .  Freedom opposed the EEOC's motion for leave to fi le .  The d istrict court entered an  
order denying Freedom's motion for summary judgment. Later, the d istrict court entered a separate order 
denying the EEOC's motion for leave to file i ts amicus b rief. However, the district court  did not strike the 
EEOC's motion for leave to file (or the proposed amicus brief, which was attached to the EEOC's motion) 
from the publ ic docket sheet for the case. 

Sexual Orientation 
• Christiansen v. Omnicom Group, Inc. (2nd Cir .  No.  1 6-748) (amicus brief filed June 28 , 201 6) .  Plaintiff­

Appel lant Matthew Christiansen brought a Title VI I lawsuit against Omnicom ,  al leging that his employer 
subjected h im to a sexual ly hosti le work environment by harassing him because he was gay and perceived 
as unmanly. The District Court for the Southern D istrict of New York dismissed Christiansen's complaint fqr. 
fai lure to state a c la im. The court stated that it was "constra ined" by b ind ing circu it precedent ,  specifically 
Simonton v. Runyon, 232 F. 3d 33 (2d Cir. 2000) and Dawson v. Bumble & Bumble, 398 F .3d 2 1 1 (2d Cir .  
2005) . However, the court noted that the "broader legal landscape" has changed greatly s ince Simonton . · 
Moreover, the court stated that d rawing a l ine between d iscrim ination based on sexual ori entation and that 
based on sexual stereotyping was difficu lt. Yet, given that Simonton i s  st i l l  good law, the cou rt was obl igated 
to adhere to precedent .  

Plaintiff appealed the decision to the Second Ci rcuit. The EEOC fi led a n  amicus curie br ief in support of 
Christiansen, a rguing that sexual orientation d iscrimination is cognizable as sex discrim ination under Title VI I .  
The EEOC outl ined three theories under which Christiansen's claim can proceed . F i rst, Title Vl l 's prohibition 
on d iscrim ination based on sex stereotypes extends to d iscrim ination based on sexual  orientation .  Second, 
Title Vl l 's prohibit ion on d iscriminat ion based on interracial associations extends to d iscrim inat ion based on  
same-sex associations .  Third , Title V l l ' s  proh ibit ion on sex  discrimination extends to  d iscrimination based on 
sexual orientation. 

Additional ly ,  the EEOC argued that the Second Circuit shou ld reconsider Simonton for two reasons: the legal 
underpinnings for the decision have shifted , and the rule that Tit le VI I does not prohibit discrimination based 
on sexual o rientation is  outdated. 

• Evans v. Georgia Regional Hospita/(1 1 th Cir .  No .  1 5- 1 5234) (amicus brief fi led January 1 1 ,  201 6) .  P la intiff­
Appel lant Jameka Evans brought a Tit le VI I  l awsuit against her employer Georgia Regional Hospital cla iming 
that she was d iscrim inated and reta liated against because of her sexual  orientation and her nonconformity to 
gender-based stereotypes. The district court for the Southern D istrict of Georgia d ismissed Evans' complaint 
for fai l u re to state a cla im on which rel ief may be g ranted .  The d istrict court concurred with the magistrate 
judge's report and recommendation ,  which stated that sexual o rientation d iscrimination is not protected under 
Tit le VI I .  The magistrate judge explained that Title VI I  "was not intended to cover discrimination against 
homosexuals ."  Addit ional ly , the magistrate judge said that Evans cou ld not state a claim for retal iation _ , 
because she could not have had a reasonable bel ief that she was opposing conduct made un lawful by Title 
VI I .  The district cou rt conducted a de nova review of the record and, without any d iscussion, adopted the 
magistrate j udge's report and recommendation and dismissed the compla int with prejudice . 

I n  its amicus brief, the EEOC argued that Tit le V l l 's prohibi t ion on sex d iscrim ination encompasses a 
prohib it ion on d iscrim ination because of sexua l  orientation .  This is a question of fi rst impression i n  the · • , 
Eleventh Circuit . Consistent with Baldwin v. Foxx, EEOC Appea l  No.  0 1 20 1 33080, 201 5 WL 439764 1 (EEOC 
Ju ly 1 5 , 201 5) , the EEOC argued that sexual orientation discrimination is covered under Tit le V I I  because 
Title  VI I proh ib its d iscrimination based on sex stereotypes, p rohib its d iscrim ination based on association , and 
proh ib its e mployers from considering a plaintiffs sex . 

The EEOC also argued that the d istrict court erred in d ismissing Evans's reta l iat ion cla im .  F i rst , the EEOC 
argued that in  complain ing about discrimination based on sexual orientation , Evans opposed conduct that 
was actua l ly  made un lawfu l by Title VI I .  Second , the EEOC argued that even if the Eleventh Circuit disagrees 
that sexua l o rientation d iscrimination is  covered by Title VI I ,  the statute shields not only employees who 
oppose acts that are i l legal under the statute , but also employees who object in good faith to practices that 
they reasonably be l ieve are i l legal , even if they a re not. Based on the Eleventh Ci rcuit 's precedent hold ing 
that Tit le V I I  proh ib its d iscrimination against transgender individua ls ,  coupled with the EEOC's wel l-publicized 
position that Tit le VII prohibits d iscrim ination based on sexua l  orientation , Evans's bel ief that she was 
opposing un lawful conduct was objectively reasonable .  

• Burrows v .  The College of Central Florida(1 1 th C i r .  No .  1 5- 1 4554) (amicus brief filed January 6 ,  201 6) . 
Plaintiff-Appel lant Barbara Burrows filed a Title VI I su it against her employer, The Col lege of Central Flori da ,  
a l leg ing tha t  because of  her  sexual orientation ,  her  employer d id no t  renew her  contract as  an  admin istrator 
and later e l im inated her position as a professor as part of a series of cutbacks . The district court for the 
Middle District of F lor ida held that Burrow's claim of gender d iscrimination fai led because it constituted a 
"repackaged" c la im of sexual orientation d iscrimination ,  which is not proh ibited underTitle VI I .  P la intiff 
appealed the decis ion to the E leventh Circuit . The EEOC filed an amicus brief in support of B urrows,  argu ing 
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that the district court's interpretation of Title V I I  i s  contrary to a growing consensus that sexual  orientat ion 
d iscrim ination claims i nvolve (1 ) i l legal sex stereotyping , (2) i l legal gender-based associational d iscriminat ion ,  
and (3) impermissible cons ideration of  a plaintiffs sex .  See Brief for U .S .  Equa l  Employment Opportunity 
Commission as Amicus Cur iae Supporting Appel lant, Burrows v. The College of Central Fla . , at *7-8 ( 1 1 th 
Ci r .  No.  1 5- 1 4554) . The Commission cited to the Eleventh circu it decision holding that non-conform ity to 
gender stereotypes is a form of sex d iscrim ination. See Glenn v. Brumby, 663 F .3d 1 3 1 2 , 1 3 1 7  ( 1 1 th Cir .  
201 1 ) .  Thus ,  d iscrimination based on sexual orientation cannot be separated from an ind ividual 's sex, 
because the root of discrim ination is that the ind ividual discr iminated against i s  not adhering to heterosexual 
concepts of behavior normative of each sex. 
The EEOC further argued that d iscrim ination based on sexual orientation a l so constitutes associational 
discrimination ,  because the ind iv idua l  is treated differently based on the sex of those with whom they 
associate . Race-based association discrimination has been proh ibited under Title VI I ,  and so it fol lows that 
thi s  prohibit ion should apply to claims of sex-based association d iscrimination. F ina l ly ,  the EEOC reiterated 
that the broad concept of sexual ori entation cannot be understood without reference to an ind ividual 's sex·; 
thus ,  any discrim ination based on sexual orientation necessari ly involves the impermiss ib le cons ideration of 
an employee's sex. 

• Muhammad v. Caterpif/ar Inc. (7th Cir. No. 1 2- 1 73) (amicus brief fi led October 9 , 20 1 4) .  P la int iff-Appel lant 
Warnether M uhammad filed th is Ti t le VI I  suit against h is employer Caterpi l la r ,  I nc. , a l leg ing that h is co­
workers created a sex- and race-based hosti le work environment. He also al leged that h is supervisor 
un lawfu l ly retal iated by suspending him after he complained about the harassment .  The a l leged harassment 
included anti-gay comments and conduct . The d i strict court granted the defendant's mot ion for summary 
judgment on a l l  cla ims .  A panel of the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Seventh C i rcuit affirmed , i n  part on the 
grounds that Title VII does not prohib i t  sexual-orientation  harassment, or retal iat ion against i ndividuals who 
oppose it i n  the workplace. Muhammad petitioned for panel rehearing . 
I n  an amicus curiae b rief supporting the petit ion , the Commission argued that part of the panel ' s rul ing rests 
on the sweeping proposition that Title Vl l 's prohibition on d iscrimination "because of sex" does not proh ib it 
discrimination based on sexual orientation . Yet an increasing number of courts, as wel l as the E EOC (the 
primary Agency charged with enforcing the statute) , have recogn ized that i ntentiona l  d iscriminat ion based on 
an  individua l's  sexual orientation can be proved to be grounded in sex-based norms , prefe rences, 
expectations, or stereotypes. For example, in  Terveer v. Billington, 20 1 4  IM.. 1 28030 1 (D .D .C .  Mar. 3 1 , 
2014) ,  the U .S .  District Court for the District of Columbia held that a p la int iffs a l legat ion that discr im ination 
occurred because of "plaintiffs status as a homosexual" - without more - p laus ib ly suggested the 
discrim ination was based on gender stereotypes, and thus staled a Tit le VI I sex-d iscrim inat ion cla im .  
Accordingly ,  Tit le V l l ' s  anti-reta l iat ion rule protects i nd ividuals who in good fa ith oppose sexual-ori entation 
d iscrimination i n  the workplace. The EEOC argued that for these reasons ,  the panel should modify the 
categorical  statements to the contrary in  its opinion, overrul ing the Circu it 's p recedent if necessary.  

On October 1 6, 201 4, the panel denied the  petition for rehearing .  Bu t  i n  a s ignificant step ,  the  pane l  issued 
an  amended opinion removing its orig inal  ru l ings regard ing the scope of Title VI I coverage .  The opinion no 
longer repeats or rel ies upon statements from prior Seventh Circuit decis ions that Title VI I does not proh ib i t  
sexual-orientation discrimination or retal iat ion for re lated opposition conduct. The revised pane l  opin ion 
affirms the d istrict court's summary-judgment fo r Caterpi l lar on other g rounds ,  on which the Commiss ion took 
no position .  See 767 F .3d 694 (7th Cir .  201 4) , 201 4 WL 44 1 8649 (7th Cir .  Sept. 9 ,  20 1 4 ,  a s  Amended on 
Denial of Rehearing ,  Oct. 1 6, 20 14) .  

• 

• 
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What You Should Know: EEOC and Enforcement Protections for LGBT Workers 
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What You Shou ld Know About EEOC and the Enforcement 

Protections for LGBT Workers 

Overview 
• Examples of LGBT-Related Sex Discrim ination Cla ims 
• Appl icable Federal Law 
• Charge Data 
• Conci l iat ion and Litigation 
• Federal Sector Enforcement 
• Tra in ing and Outreach 
• Resources 
• Other Laws 

Overview 
EEOC interprets and enfo rces Ti t le V l l ' s  p rohibit ion of sex 
d iscrimination as forb idding any employment d iscrim ination based on 
gender identity or sexual orientation.  These protections apply 
regard less of any contrary state or local laws. 

Through investigation ,  conci l iat ion, and l i tigat ion of charges by 
ind iv iduals against private sector employers, as wel l  as hearings and 
appeals for federa l  sector workers , the Commission has taken the 
posit ion that exist ing sex d iscrim ination provis ions i n  Tit le VII protect 
lesbian ,  gay, b isexual ,  and transgender (LGBT) appl icants and 
employees against employment bias. The Commission has obtained 
approximately $6.4 m i l l ion i n  monetary rel ief for ind ividua ls ,  as wel l  as 
numerous employer pol icy changes ,  in voluntary resolutions of LGBT 

�--------·---------»-•·•··•-- -·-· · -

See Also: 
i 
i 
i 
I 1 • Recent EEOC Litigat ion i Regard ing Tit le V I I  & LGBT-

i . Related D iscrim ination 
Examples of Court Decis ions 
Support i ng Coverage of LGBT­
Related D iscrimi nation Under 
T i t le VI I  '! • 

1 Federal Sector Cases I nvolv ing 
LGBT I ndividua ls  

• Addressing Sexual Or ientation 
and Gender I dentity 
D iscriminat ion i n  Federal Civ i li a n  
Employment :  A Gu ide to 
Employment R ights. Protections. 
and Respons ib i l i t ies 

: • Fact Sheet: Bathroom Access 
R ights for Transqender 
Employees Under Tit le V I I  of the 
Civi l  Rights Act of 1 964 

d iscrim ination charges under Tit le V I I  s ince data col lection began in 20 1 3 .  A g rowing number  of court decis ions 
have endorsed the Commiss ion 's interpretation of Title VI I .  

The information provided below h igh l ights what you should know about EEOC's outreach and enforcement i n  
th is area. 

Examples of LGBT-Related Sex Discrimination C la ims 
Some examples o f  LGBT-related c la ims that EEOC views a s  unlawful s e x  d i scrim inat ion inc lude:  

• Fai l ing to h i re an appl icant because she is a transgender woman.  
• F i r ing an employee because he is  p lann ing or has made a gender trans it ion .  
• Denying an employee equa l  access to  a common restroom correspond ing to  the  employee's gende r  ident ity . 
• Harassing an employee because of a gender transition ,  such as by i ntentiona l ly  and pers istently fai l ing to use 

the name and gender pronoun that correspond to the gender identity wi th which the employee ident ifies, and 
wh ich the employee has commun icated to management and employees .  

• Deny ing an employee a promotion because he is  gay or straight .  
• D iscriminat ing in terms. cond it ions, or privi leges of employment ,  such as provid ing a lower salary to an 

emp loyee because of sexual orientation , or denying spousal health insurance benefits to a female employee 
because her legal spouse i s  a woman ,  whi le providing spousal health insurance to a male employee whose 
legal  spouse is a woman .  

• Harassing an employee because of h i s  or  her  sexual orientat ion , for examp le ,  by derogatory terms, sexua l l y  
oriented comments, or d isparaging remarks for associat ing w i th  a person of  the same o r  opposite sex. 

• D iscrim inating against or  harassing an employee because of h is or her sexual  or ientat ion or gender ident i ty, 
i n  combination with another unlawful reason ,  for example , on the basis of transgender status and race , or 
sexual orientation  and d isabi l ity . 
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See How to F i le  a Charge of Employment Discriminat ion for information about fi l i ng a Title VI I charge of sex 
d iscrimination in employment related to gender identity or sexual orientation bias . There is a different complaint 
process for federal employees.  

Appl icable Federal Law 
EEOC is responsible for enforcing federal laws that make it i l legal  to d iscriminate in  employment against a job 
applicant, employee , or  former employee because of the person's race , color, re l ig ion ,  sex (includ ing 
pregnancy) , nat ional orig i n , age (40 or older) ,  d isabi l ity or genetic information .  These federal  laws also prohib it 
emp loyers from retal iat ing against workers who oppose d iscrim inatory employment practices - for example, by 
reporting incidents of sexual harassment to thei r  supervisor or human resources department - or against those 
who participate in an employment discrim ination proceeding - for example by filing an  EEOC charge ,  
cooperating with an EEOC i nvestigation ,  or participating i n  a n  employment d iscrim ination lawsuit. 

Whi le Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1 964 does not explicitly include sexual orientation or gender identity in  its 
list of p rotected bases, the Commission, consistent with Supreme Court case law hold ing that employment 
actions  motivated by gender stereotyping are un lawful sex d iscrimination and other court decis ions ,  i nterprets 
the statute's sex discrimination provision as prohibit ing d iscrimination against employees on the basis of sexual 
o rientation and gender identity . 

Over the past several years the Commission has set forth its position in severa l publ ished decis ions involving 
federal employment. These decis ions explain the  legal basis for conclud ing that LGBT-related d iscrimination 
constitutes sex d iscrim ination under Title VI I ,  and g ive examples of what would be considered un lawful .  In so 
ru l ing ,  the Commission has not recogn ized any new protected characteristics under Title VI I .  Rather, it has 
appl ied existing  Tit le V I I  precedents to sex discrimination cla ims raised by LGBT i ndividuals .  The Commission 
has reiterated these posit ions through recent amicus curiae briefs and l i tigation against private companies .  

Sex Discrimination - Transgender Status 

In Macy v. Dep't of Justice, EEOC Appeal No. 0 1 201 20821 .  20 1 2  WL 1 435995 (Apri l  20. 20 1 2) .  the Commission 
h eld that i ntentional d iscrimination against a transgender individual because that person's gender ident ity is ,  by 
definition , d iscriminat ion based on sex and therefore vio lates Title VI I .  

The Macy decis ion expla ins that a l legations of gender identity/transgender d iscriminat ion necessari ly i nvolve sex 
d iscrim ination. Such cases can be viewed as sex d iscrim ination based on non-confonmance with gender norms 
and stereotypes under the Supreme Court's 1 989 decision i n  Price Waterhouse v. Hopkins, and based on a 
plain read ing of the statute's "because of . . .  sex" language. 

Apply ing Macy, the Commission has also held that an  employer's restrictions on a transgender woman's abi l i ty 
to use a common female restroom faci l ity constitutes d isparate treatment, Lusardi v. Dep't of the Army, EEOC 
Aopeal No. 0 1 201 33395. 20 1 5  WL 1 607756 (Mar. 27. 201 5). that intentional misuse of a transgender 
employee's new name and pronoun may constitute sex-based d iscrimination and/or harassment, Jameson v. 
U. S. Postal Service. EEOC Appeal No. 0 1 20 1 30992. 20 1 3  1/VL 2368729 (May 2 1 .  201 3), and that an employer's 
fai lure to revise its records pursuant to changes in  gender identity stated a val id Title V I I  sex d iscrimination cla im ,  
Complainant v .  Dep't of Veterans Affairs, EEOC Appeal  No. 0 1 20 1 33 1 23. 20 1 4  1/VL 1 653484 (Apr. 1 6, 20 1 4). 

Sex Discrimination - Sexual Orientation 

In Baldwin v. Dep't of Transpoltation. EEOC Appeal No. 0 1 20 1 33080 (Ju ly 1 5. 201 5). the Commission held that 
a claim of d iscrimination on the basis of sexual orientation necessari ly states a claim of d iscr imination on the 
basis of sex under Tit le VI I .  

The Baldwin decision explains that al legations o f  sexual orientation discrimination necessari ly involve sex-based 
considerations .  F irst, d iscrimination on the basi s  of sexual  o rientation necessari ly i nvolves treating an employee 
d ifferently because of his or her sex. For example, a lesbian employee d iscip l ined for d isplay ing a p icture of her 
female spouse can a l lege that an employer took a d ifferent action against her based on her sex where the 
employer did not d iscip l ine a male employee for d isp laying a picture of his female spouse . Sexua l  orientation  
d iscr imination is a lso sex discrimination because it is associational  d iscrimination on the bas is  of  sex.  That i s ,  an 
employee a l leg ing d i scrimination on the basis of sexual or ientation is a l leg ing that the employer took the 
employee's sex into account by treating him or her differently for associating with a pe rson of the same sex. 
F ina l ly ,  d iscrimination on  the basis of sexual orientation is sex d iscrim inat ion because it necessari ly involves 
d iscrim ination based on gender stereotypes, includ ing employer be l iefs about the person to whom the employee 
shou ld be attracted . 

Charge Data 
In FY 201 5 ,  EEOC received a total of 1 ,4 1 2  charges that included a l legations of sex d i scrimi nation  related to 
sexua l  orientation and/or gender identity/transgender status .  Th is represents an increase of approximately 28% 
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over the total LGBT charges filed in FY 20 1 4  ( 1 , 1 00) . EEOC resolved a total of 1 , 1 35 LGBT cha rges in FY 
201 5 , including through vo luntary agreements provid ing approximately $3.3 mi l l ion in monetary relief for workers 
and achieving changes in  employer policies so that discrimination would not recur. This reflects increases of 
34% in  the number of resolutions over FY 201 4  (847) and 5 1 % in  the amount of monetary relief over FY 20 1 4  
($2 . 1 9  mi l l ion) .  The cha rt below shows charges received o r  resolved during FY 201 5. 

FY 20 1 5  

Total Sex-Gender Sex-Sexual 

LG BT l dentity/Transgender Ori entation 

Total Recei pts 1 ,4 1 2  271  1 , 1 8 1  

Total Resolutions 1 , 1 35 1 84 975 

Settlements 96 1 2  85  

8 .5% 6 .5% 8 .7% 

Withdrawals w/Benefits 57 6 53 

5.0% 3 .3% 5 .4% 

Administrative Closures 203 38 1 68 

1 7 .9% 20.7% 1 7 .2% 

N o  Reasonable Cause 737 1 1 0 644 

64.9% 59 .8% 66. 1 %  

Reasonable Cause 42 1 8  25 

3 .7% 9 .8% 2 .6% 

Successful Concil iations 1 3  7 6 

1 . 1 %  3 .8% 0.6% 

U nsuccessful 29 
Conci l i ations 

1 1  1 9  

2 .6% 6 . 0% 1 .9% 
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FY 201 5  

Total Sex-Gender Sex-Sexual 

LGBT ldentity/Transgender Orientation 

Merit Resolutions 1 95 36 1 63 

1 7 .2% 1 9 .6% 1 6 .7% 

Monetary Benefits 
$3.3 $0.3 $3.0 

(Mil l ions)*  

Note: Charges may have multiple al legations under mult ip le statutes ,  so tota ls wi l l  not  tal ly with breakdowns of 
s pecific bases or issues and a re subject to updates . Monetary benefits include amounts which have been 
recovered exclusively or partial ly on non-LGBT cla ims included in the charge. 

See our  table of al l  charge receipts and resolut ions under Tit le VI I .  

Conci l iation and  Litigation 
When the Commission finds reasonable cause to  bel ieve that d iscrimination has occurred ,  i t  seeks to  resolve the 
m atter voluntarily through informal means of conci l iation ,  confe rence, and persuasion.  If the Commission is 
u nable to secure a voluntary resolution ,  it has authority to file suit i n  federal court. I n  several cases ,  the 
Commission has filed LGBT-re lated lawsuits under Title VI I chal lenging a l leged sex discrimination .  Read about 
examples of pend ing and resolved EEOC l itigation involving Title VII sex d iscr iminat ion cla ims brought on behalf 
of LGBT individua ls ,  as wel l as EEOC amicus briefs filed in su its brought by private ind ividuals raising these 
issues . 

Federa l  Sector Enforcement 

I n  the federa l  sector, EEOC has implemented i ts  p riority for covering LGBT ind ividua ls  i n  a variety of ways :  

• Tracking gender identity and sexual o rientat ion appeals in the federa l  sector 
• Issuing 20 federa l  sector decisions in FY 20 1 5 , i nclud ing find ing that gender identity-related complaints and 

sexual orientation d iscrimination-related complaints can be brought under Title VI I through the federal sector 
EEO com pla int process.  For example,  in Larita G. v. U. S. Postal Service, EEOC Appeal No. 0 1 20 1 42 1 54 
(Nov. 1 8 , 201 5) ,  EEOC reversed the Agency's dismissal of a hosti le work environment claim on  the basis of 
sexual orientation because such an al legation is necessari ly an a l legation of sex discriminat ion under Title 
VI I .  

• Esta bl ishing an LGBT workgroup to further EEOC's adjudicatory and overs ight  respons ib i l i t ies 
• Issuing gu idance, i ncluding instructions for process ing compla ints of d iscrimination by LGBT federal 

employees and app l icants avai lable on EEOC's publ ic web site 
Provid ing technical assistance to federal agencies i n  the development of gender trans it ion pol ic ies and plans 
Providing LGBT re lated outreach to federal  agencies through briefings . presentat ions, and case l aw updates 

Tra in ing and Outreach 
EEOC is addressing LGBT legal developments in numerous outreach and tra in ing presentations to the publ ic . 
Dur ing FY 20 1 5 , field office staff conducted more than700 events and reached over 43,000 attendees where 

LGBT sex-discrimi nat ion issues were among the topics discussed .  I n  the federal sector du ring FY 201 5 ,  there 
were approximately 53 presentations del ivered to over 4,400 federal sector audience members . These events 
reached a wide variety of audiences , including employee advocacy g roups,  small employer groups,  students and 
staff at col leges and un iversit ies, staff and managers at federal agencies and human resource professionals .  To 
ass ist in th is outreach , EEOC is distributing a brochure ,  Prevent ing Employment Discriminat ion Against Lesbian, 
Gay. Bisexual or  Transqender Employees. 

Resources 

The Commission has issued various techn ical ass istance publ icat ions on LGBT issues, i nclud ing :  
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• Fact Sheet on  Recent E EOC Litigation Regard ing Tit le VI I & LG BT-Related D i scrimination ,  
www.eeoc.gov/eeoc/l itigation/selected/lgbt facts . cfm 
Examples of Court Decis ions Supporting Coverage of LGBT-Related D iscrimination Under Tit le VI I ,  
www.eeoc.gov/eeoc/newsroom/wysk/lgbt examples decis ions .cfm 

• Federal Sector Cases I nvolving LGBT I ndividuals ,  www.eeoc.gov/federa l/reports/1gbt cases .cfm 
• Brochure on Preventing Employment Discrimination Against Lesbian ,  Gay ,  Bisexua l ,  or Transgender  

Employees , http: //www.eeoc .gov/eeoc/pub l icat ions/brochure-gender stereotypinq.cfm . 
• OPM-EEOC-OSC-MSPB Gu ide :  Add ressing Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity Discrim ination in 

Federal  Civi l ian Employment ,  www.opm.gov/LGBTGuide 
• Fact Sheet: Bathroom Access Rights for Transgender Employees Under Tit le V I I  of the Civi l  Rights Act of 

1 964, www.eeoc.gov/eeoc/publ ications/fs-bathroom-access-transqender .cfm 

Usefu l resources from other agencies include: 
• OPM Guidance on Employment of Transgender I nd ividuals www.opm .gov/pol icy-data-oversiqht/diversity­

and-indus ion/reference-materia ls/gender- identity-quidance/ 
• U .S .  Department of Labor/OSHA Guide to Restroom Access for Transgender Workers ,  

https://www .osha . qov/Publ ications/O S HA3 795 .pdf 
• U .S .  Department of Justice Memorandum on Treatment of Transgender Employment D iscrim ination C la ims 

Under Title VI I of the Civ i l  Rights Act of 1 964 , http://www.ju stice .gov/fi le/1 88671 /download 

Other Laws 
Be aware of other laws that also may a pply : 

• Federal contractors and sub-contractors are covered by a separate , expl icit prohibition on transgender or  
sexual orien tation d iscrim inat ion i n  employment pursuant to Executive Order  1 3672 and implementing 
regu lations issued and enforced by the U.S. Department of Labor's Office of Federal Contract Compl iance . 
For more i nformation ,  see Frequently Asked Q uestions on E .O .  1 3672 F ina l  Ru le ,  
www.dol .gov/ofccp/LGBT/LGBT FAQs .html 
State or  local fair  employment laws may expl icitly prohibit discrimination based on sexual orientation or 
gender identity. Contact information for state and local fa ir emp loyment agencies can be found  on the page 
for EEOC's field office covering that state o r  local ity . On the other hand , i f a state or local law permits or  does 
not prohibit d iscrimination based on sexual or ientation or  gender ident ity , the EEOC wi l l  st i l l  e nforce Tit le Vl l ' s  
d iscrimination proh ibitions against covered employers i n  that jurisdiction because contrary state law is not a 
defense under Title VI I .  Appl icants and employees in those ju risd ict ions should contact the EEOC di rectly if 
they bel ieve they have been subjected to sex d iscrimination based on sexual o rientation  or gender identity . 
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